




To: Board of Directors 
 Sedona-Oak Creek Airport Authority 
 
From: David M. Cooper 

Vice-president 
 

Re: Amendment of SOCAA Bylaw Imposing Board Member Term Limits 
 
Date: August 29, 2024 
 
I recommend that the Board amend its Bylaws to remove the limit on successive terms that a Board 
member may serve. 
 
Currently, the Bylaws require a Board member to take a one-year leave after every two terms. 
Presumably, this is intended to encourage a certain amount of turnover on the Board. However, in 
practice, this artificial term-limit has not proven to be necessary, as we have had several vacancies 
in the past few years, all of which were filled according to the Board Candidate Selection Policy. These 
vacancies arose for a variety of reasons. Moving out of the area and simply not wanting to devote the 
significant time and effort required of a Board member seem to be the two leading reasons. In filling 
the most recent vacancy in 2021, we received only one application for consideration even after 
publishing the vacancy two times. (The Policy only requires one publication.) 
 
As you know, serving capably as a Board member requires one to acquire a working knowledge of 
often arcane and challenging FAA rules and regulations, and it often takes several years to acquire 
the institutional knowledge and memory that enable a Board member to make the best decisions 
possible. Long-term service by interested and devoted volunteers should be encouraged rather than 
discouraged. History proves that Board member turnover will occur regularly for a variety of reasons. 
 
It is important to note, per Article II.2.5.B., that after serving the first 5-year term, a Board member 
who desires to serve an additional term must be approved by at least 75% of the other Board 
members and by the Yavapai County Board of Supervisors. This serves as a two-level check against 
long-term service by a less-than-capable Board member. Furthermore, I am not aware of any 
applicable term limits on other local governing agencies (e.g., Sedona City Council, Sedona Fire 
District, Yavapai County Board of Supervisors). 
 
I have also pasted a copy of Article VII of the Bylaws below for your convenience. 
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
 
Article II.2.5.C. There shall be no limit to the number of five (5) year terms each Board member is 
eligible to serve, provided that a one (1) year leave shall be taken after the Board member completes 
his or her second five (5) year term. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
AMENDMENTS & REPEAL 

 
A. Upon properly noticed motion by any member of the Board, a majority of the total number of Board 
members currently seated on the Board (excluding vacant Board seats) and present in person at any 



public meeting called for that purpose, the Board may consider altering, amending, or repealing 
these Bylaws. 
 
B. Any proposed alteration, amendment, or repeal shall be read in its entirety at two separate Board 
meetings, shall be provided to and reviewed by each member of the Board, shall have a comment 
period of at least thirty (30) days, except in cases of an emergency declared by a majority vote of 
Board members present at a meeting. 
 
C. Pursuant to the Master Lease, at ¶ 26, any proposed alteration, amendment, or repeal of these 
Bylaws shall be submitted to Yavapai County no later than thirty (30) days prior to the date set for 
approval by the Board. 
 
D. Assuming Yavapai County does not disapprove of any Bylaws or amendments within forty-five (45) 
days of their submission, these Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed by a majority vote of 
the Board of Directors present in person at any Regular, Special, or Annual Meeting called for that 
purpose. 
 


